
 
 

 
West Northamptonshire Council 

www.westnorthants.gov.uk  

Northamptonshire COVID-19 
Oversight and Engagement Board 

A meeting of the Northamptonshire COVID-19 Oversight and 
Engagement Board will be held at the Virtual via Zoom on Thursday 14 

October 2021 at 9.00 am 
 

 

Agenda 
  

1.  Welcome and Apologies  

Observers can view via Northamptonshire Democracy YouTube Channel 

 

2.  Minutes from the previous meeting 19th August 2021 (Pages 5 - 10) 

 

3.  Action log (Pages 11 - 12) 

 

4.  Northants Police Update  

 

5.  Vaccination Programme Update  

 

6.  Northamptonshire COVID19 Weekly Surveillance Report (Pages 13 - 34) 

 

7.  Contain Framework  

 

8.  Testing and contact tracing update  

 

9.  Communications Update  

 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCOtMXYpYYhvEHxYkCiUdtqw


 
 
 
 
 

Catherine Whitehead 
Proper Officer 
Date Not Specified 
 
 

Northamptonshire COVID-19 Oversight and Engagement Board Members: 

 

 

 

 

Councillor Sally Beardsworth Counicllor Jon-Paul Carr 

Councillor Julie Davenport Councillor Gareth Eales 

Councillor Matt Golby Councillor Helen Harrison 

Councillor Jonathan Nunn  
 
 

Information about this Agenda 

 
Apologies for Absence 
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to 
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.  
 
 
Declarations of Interest 
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start 
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item 
 
 
Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & 
Supplementary Estimates 
Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax 
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget 
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the 
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax. 
 
 
Evacuation Procedure 
If a continuous fire alarm sounds you must evacuate the building via the nearest available 
fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the assembly area as directed by 
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.  
 
 
Access to Meetings 
If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or 
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as 
possible before the meeting. 
 
 
Mobile Phones 

Page 2

mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk


Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off. 
 
 
Queries Regarding this Agenda 
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact Cheryl Bird via the following:  
 
Tel:  
Email:   
 
Or by writing to:  
 
West Northamptonshire Council 
One Angel Square 
Angel Street 
Northampton 
NN1 1ED 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



              
   

 
 

Minutes of the COVID19 Oversight and Engagement Board Meeting 
held at 9.00 am on Thursday 19th August 2021 

held virtually via Zoom 
 

Present: 
Cllr Matt Golby – Chair Cabinet member for Adults and Public Health, West  
 Northamptonshire Council 
Cllr Helen Harrison –  Portfolio Holder for Adults and Public Health, North 
Vice Chair North Northamptonshire Council 
Cllr Jean Addison North Northamptonshire Council  

 Simon Blatchly Assistant Chief Constable, Northamptonshire Police 
 Cllr Jon-Paul Carr Chair North Northamptonshire Health and Wellbeing Board, 
  North Northamptonshire Council 
 Cllr Emma Fedorowycz North Northamptonshire Council  
 Kathryn Hall Communications Lead, Public Health Northamptonshire, North  
  Northamptonshire Council 
 Kate Holt Chief Executive, Healthwatch Northamptonshire 
 Cllr Jonathan Nunn Leader, West Northamptonshire Council  
 Professor Will Pope Interim Chair, Healthwatch Northamptonshire 
 Cllr Emma Roberts North Northamptonshire Council  
 Julie Shepherd Chief Nurse, Northamptonshire Healthcare Foundation Trust  

Lucy Wightman Director of Public Health, Northamptonshire County Council 
 and Director of Population Health Strategy, NHS 
 Northamptonshire Clinical Commissioning Group 

 
Minute Taker:  
 Cheryl Bird   Health and Wellbeing Board Business Manager, Public Health  
  Northamptonshire, North Northamptonshire Council   

 
Apologies: 
 Cllr Phil Bignell West Northamptonshire Council 
 Cllr Gareth Eales West Northamptonshire Council   

 Danny Moody Chief Executive, Northants CALC 
 Shirley Plenderleith COVID19 Chief of Staff, North and West Northamptonshire  
  Councils 
 Toby Sanders  Chief Operating Officer, NHS Northamptonshire Clinical 

Commissioning Group 
 Cllr Jason Smithers Leader, North Northamptonshire Council 
 
 

11/21 Welcome 
 

The Chair opened the meeting and welcomed everyone present.   
 

 
12/21 Minutes from the previous meeting 8th July 2021 

 
RESOLVED that: the minutes from the meeting held on the 8th July 2021 were agreed as an 
accurate record. 
 
 
13/21 Action Log 
 

 Kath Hall to provide a small briefing on vaccination and testing for Healthwatch 
Northamptonshire to include in their monthly newsletter. Completed.   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Page 2 of 6 
 

 The Chair and Vice Chair to circulate the Contact Tracing and Testing Update slides to their 
respective elected members. Completed. 

 Danny Moody is to be added into the refreshed membership.  Completed 

 
14/21 Northamptonshire Police Update 
 
Assistant Chief Constable Blatchly gave an update from Northamptonshire Police and highlighted 
the following: 

 Nationally Police Forces have been advised to work with their respective Directors of Public 
Health around how to manage police officers and staff in the work place following the relaxation 
of COVID19 restrictions.   

 In Northamptonshire Police staff maintain wearing face masks in the workplace and custody 
areas, with maintained numbers of staff present in the workplace. 

 Northants police did initially suffer from the pindemic and had to seek special dispensation 
from central government for front line and firearm officers to be excluded from self isolation in 
order to maintain services.  

 360k people attended the British Grand Prix at Silverstone this year, which was a success for 
the county in terms of the health and policing operations that took place 

 Large crowds are expected for the Moto Grand Prix later in August. 

 Incident levels are now back to pre-pandemic levels.  The night time economy has re-opened 
resulting in more incidents relating to drunken behaviour and public order offences in town 
centres across the county. 

 There are now very few COVID19 related calls being made by the public and very little policing 
demand from the isolation hotel in Northamptonshire.   

 
The Chair thanked Northamptonshire Police for all their work during the pandemic.   

 
RESOLVED that: the Board noted the Northants Police update 

 
 

15/21 Contain Framework 
 

The Director of Public Health gave a presentation on the Contain Framework and highlighted the 
following:  

 One of the requirements for local authorities and Public Health Teams is to produce a local 
Outbreak Management Plan.   

 The Northamptonshire plan needs to be updated due central Government publishing a new 
Contain Framework.   

 The Contain Framework outlines the roles and responsibilities of local authorities, local 
system partners, regional and national teams and the governance that sits between the 
decision making instruments and response structures.  As well as highlighting the support 
that can be expected from partners particularly at a regional and national level such as the 
regional convener, Joint Bio Security Centre, Public Health England and Department of 
Health and Social Care. 

 The Contain Framework also updates the core components of the response, including 
variants of concern, vaccination and how these updates need to be factored into local 
Outbreak Management Plan.  The Framework also includes a narrative to enable the public 
to make informed decisions, to take individual responsibility for protecting themselves and 
their wider community.  The local authority is tasked with providing up to date and accurate 
information to enable the population to make these informed decisions.   

 The Director of Public Health has a statutory responsibility to manage infectious diseases 
that pose a risk to the local population, and to have an appropriate contingency plan and 
resources for any surge capacity.   

 The Local Resilience Forum arrangements are still in place and meet on a regular basis. 

 Through elected Leaders, local authorities are accountable to their communities for the 
response, decisions and expenditure.  

 The core activities outlined in the Contain Framework are: 

Page 6



Page 3 of 6 
 

 Testing, both PCR and lateral flow, with roving mobile testing units being used in places 
with high infection rates or hard to reach communities.  Lateral flow testing kits can be 
collected from community pharmacies and asymptomatic testing sites.  

 Contact tracing is still a national requirement but is now being delegated to the local 
teams.   

 Support for self isolation.  Northamptonshire has a robust contact tracing partnership in 
place, including provision of a social isolation support pack which is seen as an exemplar 
of good practice and being adopted by other local authorities across the country.   

 Vaccination - vaccination uptake has slowed recently.  Vaccination teams are working to 
engage with hard to reach communities who have a lower level of vaccination, to provide 
the appropriate information to address any concerns that may arise.  Also to support the 
booster campaign which is expected in the next few weeks with the correct information 
by the business intelligence teams. 

 Key enables for the Contain Fund are: 
 operational support from national teams if required,  
 funding 
 communications and engagement,  
 maintaining the local Outbreak Management Plan.  

 The draft outbreak plan is in the process of being updated and will be presented to the 
regional convener for review and sign off.   

 The UK health security agency becomes operational 1st October 2021. 

 
Following questions from the Board the Director of Public Health added the following: 

 There is a weekly East Midlands Directors of Public Health meeting, where Directors of 
Public Health can share plans, insights and information around what the challenges are in 
local areas.  There are also links into the national and regional meetings led by regional 
conveners who meet regularly at a national level. 

 There are plans in place to ensure vaccines see utilised as much as possible.  Younger 
age cohorts generally tend to use the vaccination centre rather than being vaccinated at 
GP practices.   

 Clinicians have raised concerns in the new guidance that if a person is 14 days’ post 
second vaccination and a close contact of a case they no longer need to self isolate but 
get a PCR test.  Although double vaccination provides protection against contracting the 
virus and reducing the severity and duration of symptoms, as well as reducing further 
onward transmission of the virus. The challenge is symptoms can develop over a 10 day 
period, and if a PCR test is completed within 24 hours of exposure a high viral load is 
unlikely, leading to a negative result.  If identified as a close contact of a positive case, 
people are advised to think about the timing of the PCR test and to continue with twice 
weekly lateral flow tests.  For council employees in Northamptonshire who come into 
contact with vulnerable people they are asked to get a PCR test and isolate until the result 
of the PCR test is known.   

 As a result of the lockdowns and restrictions in place over the past eighteen months, there 
has been few infectious diseases such as colds, flu and norovirus.   Now there are no 
restrictions in place it is expected over the winter period to see an increase in infectious 
disease cases due to the population not having built up the natural immunities.   

 All NHS services are extremely pressured, but this is not due to COVID19 and there is a 
need to maintain system flow in order to prepare for any potential spikes of COVID19, or 
potential surges in other infectious diseases.  This includes ensuring the workforce stay 
well and able to deliver services. 

   
RESOLVED that:  

 The updated Local Outbreak Management Plan will be shared with the Board at the 
next meeting. 

 Helen Harrison to forward information to Director of Public Health regarding 
vaccination problems at GP surgeries.  

 The Chair and Director of Public Health to discuss whether to bring a report back to 
the Board on the implications of the legalisation of care home workers and 
domiciliary care workers must be double vaccinated.    

 Flu communications campaign to be included in the Cllr briefing.   

Page 7



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 
16/21 Weekly Surveillance Report 
 
The Director of Public Health gave an overview of COVID19 data for Northamptonshire up to the 
12th September and highlighted the following: 

 All age case rate for Northamptonshire is 307 per 100000 population on a rolling seven-day 
average. 

 The over 60s case rate has increased,  

 There have 3 outbreaks in last 3 days, the largest being in a work environment with over 20 
cases.   

 In North Northamptonshire age groups 17-18 has a highest case rate followed by 19-24 years, 
in West Northamptonshire the 19-24 years are most affected followed by 17 – 18 years.   

 Scoping work is taking place on an initiative where specific retail shops more appealing to the 
younger population could distribute information on lateral flow testing.   
 

RESOLVED that: the Board noted the COVID19 data update. 
 
 

17/21 COVID19 Vaccination Update 
 

The Director of Public Health provided an update on the COVID19 vaccination programme and 
highlighted the following: 

 915874 vaccinations have been administered across the county of these: 
 659500 are the people are double vaccinated 
 494500 had one vaccine dose. 
 36.85% of 18-29 have had their first dose and 36.5% have had both vaccine doses.   
 30-39 years approximately 80% have been vaccinated. 

 There will be an extended flu vaccination programme for 2021/2022 to include all over 50’s 
and those clinically vulnerable.  School age children will also be offered the nasal vaccination. 

 Flu vaccination and COVID19 vaccination can be administered at the same time, but there has 
to be six months between your second COVID19 vaccination and the COVID19 booster 
vaccination.   

 Clarification is awaited from the JVCI on the population cohorts eligible for the COVID19 
booster vaccination. 

 Registered carers will be invited this year to receive a free flu vaccine, those who have a caring 
responsibility need to inform their GP practice of their status as a carer. 

 From the 11th November it will be mandatory for all staff who attend care homes and provide 
domiciliary care to have received the COVID19 vaccination.  The Directors of Adult Social 
Care in the West and North of the county are monitoring the situation closely, are aware of the 
this impacts a number of staff who have not been vaccinated and working through the 
implications of this.  They have already run a focus group session to provide further information 
on how and where to access vaccination and myth busting.     

 
Resolved that:  

 Chris Pallot to be asked to attend the next meeting to provide and update on 
operational challenges for the vaccination programme as we move into winter.  

 The Board noted the vaccination update.  

 
 
18/21 Contact Tracing  
 
The Director of Public Health provided an update on contact tracing and highlighted the following: 

 The National Test and Trace programme are still trying to make the initial contacts, if they are 
unsuccessful after 24 hours the case is then passed to the local test and trace service.     

 The local test and trace system also ensure that those they contact advising to self isolate 
have access to food, medication, social support and nutrition advice.  The support pack 

Page 8



Page 5 of 6 
 

circulated to those who are self isolating by the local team has been adopted by other councils 
as best practice.   

 The local team is managing to contact 90% of contacts from positive cases, this is down from 
the previous 91% due to the increase in positive cases placing additional pressures on 
Capacity within the local team. 

 Due to IT issues for 2-3 days all contact tracing cases were pushed back to the national team 
to complete.   

 
RESOLVED that: the Board noted the Test and Trace update.  
 
 
19/21Testing update 
 
The Director of Public Health provided an update on testing within the county and highlighted the 
following: 

 There are 5 symptomatic PCR local testing sites across the county, located in Corby, Daventry, 
Kettering, Northampton and Wellingborough.   

 A regional PCR testing site is based at the Kettering Conference Centre. 

 There are five mobile PCR testing units located across the county, they stay in one location 
for a week and then move to the next venue.  These mobile testing units are placed where 
case rates are at their highest or where an outbreak has occurred.   

 There are four options for completing a lateral flow test: 
 Attending a lateral flow testing site in Corby, Northampton and Wellingborough. 
 Ordering a postal home test kit 
 Collecting home test kits from local pharmacies, there are over 120 pharmacies in the 

county who are able to provide these tests. 
 Getting a lateral flow test at work or at school.  

 Several wards in the county are visited by door to door teams delivering lateral flow testing 
kits, these are in areas of high virus transmission within the community.   

 As a result of poor utilisation the Department for Health and Social Care have asked local 
areas to provide fewer static sites and use more mobile options to travel to areas where there 
are high transmission rates, low rates of testing or vulnerable isolated groups.   

 There is lots of capacity within the lateral flow and PCR testing sites in the county. 

 Good testing rates are being maintained across the county,  

 
RESOLVED that: the Board noted the testing update. 

 
 

20/21 Communications Update 
 
Kath Hall provided an update on the communications work taking place and highlighted the 
following: 

 As COVID19 restrictions are lifted, a campaign has been launched ‘be kind and bear others in 
mind’.  Helping people to understand high risk situations and the measures to take in these 
situations.   

 There are a set of images shared across social media channels and public health channels, 
showing the different settings, people who might be at risk.  There will also be an animation 
showcasing a family of four and grandparents through the week and the different attitudes 
towards life returning to normal.   

 Feedback from Environmental Health Officers is that small businesses have really suffered 
during the pandemic, with staff at risk from contracting COVID19 which makes small 
businesses harder to remain open.  A poster has been developed ‘just one exposure could 
lead to closure’.  The poster asks people to wear face coverings and socially distance when 
entering the premises to protect the people running those businesses.   

 Caroline Maggs is working with adult social services and care home teams across the county 
to try and encourage more health and social care workers to take up the vaccine. 

 The testing van travels too hard to reach communities, engaging with these communities to 
educate local people on the testing kits and to encourage people to take up regular testing.  
The testing van can provide test kits and undertake testing if needed to do so.   

Page 9



Page 6 of 6 
 

 Local assets are being developed in conjunction with national assets around the changes in 
self isolation, to make it clear how guidance applies to population cohorts.  Reinforcing the 
importance of having a PCR test and people adopting appropriate behaviours during the 
incubation period of the virus. 

 Work is taking place to encourage 16-17 years to get vaccinated.     

 The COVID19 Communications Cell is being deescalated and the resources will be split 
between the North and West communications teams for business as usual.   

 The Communications Team have been shortlisted for an lGC award. 

 
RESOLVED that: the Board noted the communications update 

 
Date of next meeting 
 
The next meeting will be at virtually via Zoom at 9.00 am on Thursday 14th October 2021.   
 

Page 10



Action Overdue

Action Pending

Actin on Hold

Action No Action Point Action Name Progress Status of Action

190821/02
Helen Harrison to forward information to Director of Public Health 

regarding vaccination problems at GP surgeries

Action No Action Point Action Name Progress Status of Action

190821/01
The updated Local Outbreak Management Plan will be shared with the 

Board at the next meeting
An agenda item for the 14th October. Completed.

190821/03
The Chair and Director of Public Health to discuss whether to bring a

report back to the Board on the implications of the legalisation of care

home workers and domiciliary care workers must be double vaccinated.   

The Director of Public Health will provide an update on the 

14th October.
Completed.

190821/04 Flu communications campaign to be included in the Cllr briefing Completed.

190821/05
Chris Pallot to be asked to attend the next meeting to provide and update

on operational challenges for the vaccination programme as we move into

winter. 

Chris Pallot to attend the meeting on the 14th October Completed.

OVERSIGHT AND ENGAGEMENT BOARD ACTION LOG 

OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

COMPLETED ACTIONS FROM 19th August 2021

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 3



P
age 12



Northamptonshire COVID-19 
Weekly Surveillance Report

Data up to 4th October 2020

Northamptonshire residents 
are being asked to STRICTLY follow the national guidance to protect the local community and reduce transmission rates.

Positive COVID-19 cases have doubled in our county since last week. This means we have reached a point where they will 
continue to rise rapidly unless we urgently obey national and local guidance. 
The majority of positive cases are due to community household transmission.

1

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



New Government Guidance
• Prime Minister Boris Johnson is due to announce further national guidance on Monday 12 October. Click here on Monday for the new guidance.

• Weddings continue to be limited to 15 guests instead of 30, face coverings are now required to be worn in private hire vehicles, in pubs and 

restaurants when not seated at a table, and staff in retail and hospitality are now be required to wear face coverings. Those who are able to work 

from home are strongly advised to do so where possible. A number of entertainment venues are now required to close between 10pm and 5am. Full 

details of the latest guidance can be found here. 

• Those who do not follow Test and Trace guidance, or those who breach self-isolation, will be fined.

• Financial support is now available for eligible individuals who have to self-isolate for 14 days. Click here to find out how.

• We are continuing to implement the COVID-19 guidance around the “Rule of Six”. This includes rules around social distancing, seeing friends and 

family, going to venues and taking part in activities. Click here for the guidance.

• Failure to engage and follow national guidance could lead to further restrictions being imposed locally. Such restrictions could include limitations on 

mixing with others who are outside of your household, in homes and gardens, in pubs and restaurants and further restrictions on the opening hours 

of bars and restaurants. 

• To find out where in the country additional local restrictions are in place consult the local restrictions government webpage.

2

P
age 14

https://www.gov.uk/search/news-and-communications
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/coronavirus-covid-19-what-has-changed-22-september
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-what-to-do-if-youre-employed-and-cannot-work
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-meeting-with-others-safely-social-distancing/coronavirus-covid-19-meeting-with-others-safely-social-distancing
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-restrictions-areas-with-an-outbreak-of-coronavirus-covid-19


Public Health Measures
• We continue to urge all residents of Northamptonshire to follow additional measures to avoid a local lockdown (see 

slide 4). 

• All multi team sports gatherings and tournaments across Northamptonshire continue to be paused in line with the 
national guidance. We continue to thank Northamptonshire residents for supporting us in taking these actions.

• Spectators at all sporting events are encouraged to stay at home.

• Due to the recent increase in cases locally, and given the age and illness profile of care home residents and hospital 
patients, as of Monday 12 October we are once again recommending providers limit public visiting (other than in 
extenuating circumstances).

• We are telling Northamptonshire residents that all events, celebrations and social gatherings with large groups 
should follow national guidance.

• Public Health Northamptonshire, Environmental Health officers, Northamptonshire County Council and the police 
have, and will, use enforcement powers where there is non compliance in relation to COVID-19 regulations.

• We are reminding all Northamptonshire residents to wear face coverings while on public transport and in enclosed 
public spaces and if they must car share, to wear a face covering and have the windows open. 

• We are asking recruitment agencies to keep workers assigned with one particular organisation to avoid cross 
contamination.

3

P
age 15



We ask Northamptonshire Residents To:

Keep 2 metres from others at all times

Follow the “Rule of Six”

If you must meet those outside of your 

household or support bubble, meet in 

an outdoor space

Do not share items with others outside 

of your household or bubble

Act Now

4

If social distancing at 2 metres is not 

possible, always use a face covering 

Avoid using public transport or car sharing -

wear face coverings if you must travel with 

others

Wash your hands regularly and thoroughly 

for 20 seconds each time

Work from home if you are able to

P
age 16



All Northamptonshire Residents Must:

Test, Trace and Isolate

• COVID-19 symptoms include a high 
temperature, a new continuous cough and a 
loss or change to your sense of smell or taste.

• If you have COVID-19 symptoms, however 
mild, do not go to work, either work from 
home or report sick, self-isolate and get a test.

• If you are contacted by test and trace and 
asked to self-isolate, stay at home for 14 days.

• Details of all testing facilities across the county 
are updated daily and can be found here. 
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/coronav
irus-updates/Pages/coronavirus-testing-in-
northamptonshire.aspx.

• Residents seeking a test should book a test in 
advance, online, on the NHS Test and Trace app 
or by calling 119.

In Northamptonshire we are a team of nearly 750,000 
people – we must work together to protect each other.

We must follow the Government’s ‘rule of 6’ and the new 
guidance regarding social distancing, seeing friends and 
family, going to venues and activities. Click here for the new 
guidance.

We all need to continue to protect ourselves and each other 
by following the social distancing guidelines, washing hands 
regularly for 20 seconds, wearing a face covering on public 
transport / in enclosed spaces and complying with test and 
trace measures. 

If you are told you’ve been in close contact with someone 
who has tested positive, you must isolate for 14 days to 
protect others. If you have symptoms, however mild, isolate 
immediately and book a test at nhs.uk/coronavirus.

5

P
age 17

https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/testing-and-tracing/get-a-test-to-check-if-you-have-coronavirus/
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/coronavirus-updates/Pages/coronavirus-testing-in-northamptonshire.aspx
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-meeting-with-others-safely-social-distancing/coronavirus-covid-19-meeting-with-others-safely-social-distancing
https://www.nhs.uk/coronavirus


Total and Weekly Summary

This graph shows the number of people who have tested positive for 
COVID-19 in Northamptonshire each week since 13th July 2020.
There has been an overall increasing trend over the last two months 
with a significant spike in cases in the last week. This was higher than 
the spike seen in the week of 10th August which was mostly driven by 
a large workplace outbreak. Cases have more than doubled compared 
to the week commencing 21st September. 
Cases are shown by the date the test was carried out, therefore this 
increase has not been caused by the data recording delays recently 
reported by Public Health England.

A total of 5,575 positive cases have been identified in Northamptonshire to date.  Of this number, 417 were identified 
in the last week, 28th September – 4th October 2020.

Testing in all settings | 5,575 total | 417 in the last week.

* Please note that the privately commissioned tests at Greencore UK Northampton have been logged as Pillar 1 in the national data.

6

P
age 18



Recent Cases by Age and Gender
This graph shows the number of positive test results for 
COVID-19 in Northamptonshire over the last 28 days by 
gender and by ten-year age band.

Recently, more women than men have been testing 
positive for COVID-19 but cases in the last 28 days are 
showing more of a parallel split between genders.

For both genders, the age group with the most positive 
tests is the 20 to 29 year olds, followed by 10 to 19 year 
olds. Both of these age ranges are socially active and may 
result in higher case rates due to high levels of social 
interaction.

Cases are also high in adults aged 50 to 59. People in this 
age group may be more susceptible to becoming infected 
in working environments or by catching the disease from 
younger family members.

Cases are also increasing in the over 60s which is of 
particular concern as these age groups tend to be at 
greater risk of more severe disease.

7

P
age 19



Total Cases by District and Borough

This table shows the total number of people who 
have tested positive for COVID-19 up to 4th

October 2020 in each of Northamptonshire’s 
seven districts and boroughs.

The county as a whole and all districts and 
boroughs have seen an increase in cases 
compared to the previous week. 
Northamptonshire’s total cases have more than 
doubled compared to the previous week.

Please note that caution must be applied when 
viewing week on week changes. To see the overall 
changes in areas in context please see slide 9.

Area
Total cases to 

4 Oct 2020

Cases in week 
28 Sep to 4 
Oct 2020

Change from 
previous week

Northamptonshire 5,575 417 

Corby 569 33 

Daventry 420 47 

East Northamptonshire 596 76 

Kettering 868 63 

Northampton 2,188 121 

South Northamptonshire 387 36 

Wellingborough 547 41 

8

P
age 20



Rates of Cases by District and Borough
The data in this table shows us what the total 
and most recent week’s positive COVID-19 case 
numbers for our districts and boroughs would 
look like if each area had the exact same 
population size (100,000). 

This helps us to compare geographic areas with 
different sized populations more accurately, and 
also helps to compare individual areas with local, 
regional and national averages.

All district and borough infection rates per 
100,000 population for the most recent week 
are significantly lower than the national average.

Overall, Northamptonshire’s rate of cases in the 
most recent week is significantly lower than the 
England average, but this is due to a significant 
increase in the England rate and therefore must 
be viewed in this context.

*Please note that the word sig means ‘significant’ is a statistical term which simply means that 

the research is valid.

Source: coronavirus.data.gov.uk

Area
Cumulative rate 
per 100,000 to 

1 Oct 2020

Rate per 
100,000 25 
Sep to 1 Oct 

2020

Compared to 
county rate 25 

Sep to 1 Oct 2020

Compared to 
England rate 25 

Sep to 1 Oct 2020

Northamptonshire 720 39.3 - Sig lower

Corby 775 36.7 Similar Sig lower

Daventry 471 43.8 Similar Sig lower

East Northamptonshire 603 55.4 Similar Sig lower

Kettering 829 38.5 Similar Sig lower

Northampton 947 34.6 Similar Sig lower

South Northamptonshire 399 27.0 Similar Sig lower

Wellingborough 669 46.6 Similar Sig lower

9

P
age 21

https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/


Rate of Daily Lab Confirmed Cases 

This graph includes all testing data. It 
shows that Northamptonshire’s rate of 
cases in the last seven days is below the 
England average however this is largely 
due to a recent increase in the national 
average and therefore must be viewed in 
this context.

All districts and boroughs have seven 
day average rates below the England 
average. East Northamptonshire’s rate 
has shown a rapid increase in recent 
days and is now the highest in the 
county, followed by Wellingborough.

*These are 7-day rolling averages of numbers of cases as a rate per 100,000 population – this is done to even out the fluctuations we see in testing volumes on weekdays vs weekends.
Source: coronavirus.data.gov.uk

10

P
age 22

https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/


Education Status

This table shows a summary of school 
status and attendance in 
Northamptonshire for the previous 
week. It also shows the number of 
reported cases in the previous week at 
the University of Northampton.

The most recent attendance rates are 
similar to the baseline figures for 
Autumn term 2019.

A further breakdown of outbreaks and 
exposures in schools and colleges by 
district can be found on slide 16. 

Week up to 
07/10/2020

Active outbreaks in schools/colleges (05/10/2020) 4

Total cases associated with active outbreaks in 
schools/colleges (outbreak start to 05/10/2020)

16

University of Northampton reported cases in the 
previous week

10

% schools open – average of the previous week 100%

% schools fully open – average of the previous week 97%

% schools partially open – average of the previous 
week

3%

% pupils attending – average of the previous week 93%

Baseline Autumn term attendance data figure for 
same period in 2019

94%

11

P
age 23



Cases by Community – Last 28 Days

The chart shows the local 
communities within 
Northamptonshire where 
COVID-19 infections over 
the last 28 days are 
highest. 

Areas with the highest 
case numbers in the last 
28 days help us to 
prioritise and focus our 
support locally.

The areas with the highest 
case numbers are in 
Corby, Kettering, 
Wellingborough and
Northampton.

12

P
age 24



Case Rates by Community – Last 28 Days per 100,000 

population

These graphics show what 
positive COVID-19 case 
numbers over the last 28 
days would look like if each 
local community had the 
exact same size population 
(100,000). 

The map illustrates the 28-
day infection rate per 
100,000 population across 
the whole county.

* Please note that the numbers shown on this page represent the best possible estimate we can make from a wider range of numbers, because there is always 
a margin of error when calculating cases per 100,000 population – particularly where actual case numbers are small.

13

P
age 25



This chart shows the local 
communities within 
Northamptonshire where 
COVID-19 cases are highest 
since the start of the 
pandemic.

Local numbers of confirmed 
cases for the whole county are 
illustrated in the map.

The areas with the highest case 
numbers are in central 
Northampton, closely followed 
by Kettering and 
Wellingborough. This helps us 
to prioritise and focus our 
support locally.

Cumulative Cases by Community

14

P
age 26



Cumulative Case Rates by Community 
per 100,000 population

If each community had the exact same 
population (100,000) in 
Northamptonshire, this graphic shows 
what the total COVID-19 case numbers 
would look like for each community.

The chart highlights local communities 
where the overall infection rates since 
the start of the pandemic are highest, 
and the map illustrates overall infection 
rates per 100,000 population across the 
whole county.

Areas with higher overall rates of 
infection show us where we need to 
prioritise and focus our support locally.

* Please note that the numbers shown on this page represent the best possible estimate. There is always a margin of error when calculating cases per 100,000 
population – particularly where actual case numbers are small. 

15

P
age 27



Summary of Outbreaks and Exposures 

• Please note that this summary covers all situations classified as ‘active’. An active situation has had at least 1 positive case within the previous 28 days. 
• It is also important to note that  the majority of cases are due to community household transmission.

16

In the last 28 days (to 5 Oct 2020) Corby Daventry
East 

Northants Kettering Northampton
South 

Northants Wellingborough County total Case total

Outbreak
(two or more cases 

linked by place and time 
to that setting)

Outbreaks 4 1 1 5 5 1 4 21 85
Care home/service 1 1 2 3 3 10 43
Childcare
Workplace 3 1 1 1 6 24
School/college 2 2 4 16
Hospital/hospice 1 1 2

Other

In the last 7 days (to 5 Oct 2020)

Cluster
(two  or more cases 
associated with that 

setting but not 
“connected by time and 
place” to that setting)

Clusters 1 1 4 6 11
Care home/service 1 1 1
Childcare
Workplace
School/college 1 1 3 5 10
Hospital/hospice 

Other

Exposure
(single case where there 
has been (or potentially 

been) exposure to 
contacts in that setting)

Exposures 8 1 1 11 2 3 26 27
Care home/service 5 6 1 12 13
Childcare 1 1 2 2
Workplace 1 1 1
School/college 2 1 4 1 3 11 11
Hospital/hospice

Other

Total incidents logged 53 123

P
age 28



Ongoing Public Health Actions

• We continue to ask residents to download the new Test and Trace app onto their phones and use the functions to 
check in to venues, to check any symptoms and follow any notifications.

• We continue to work with businesses to ensure they are displaying the QR code for the Test and Trace app, recording 
details of visitors and guests and following the new guidance.

• Northamptonshire has been able to maintain a high level of testing over the last week. We are working to support 
residents in complying with our “test, trace and isolate” approach to limit further transmission of the virus.

• Despite ongoing challenges in national laboratory processing capacity, we continue to provide a wide variety of 
testing locations across the county. 

• We are tracking all of our outbreak situations daily, based on the intelligence we receive, and we are taking action to 
manage COVID-19 in our communities. Part of this is communicating with you, the residents of Northamptonshire.

• We continue to drill deeper into the data at postcode level to understand the reasons for increased levels of infection. 

• We are harnessing links with all communities across Northamptonshire with Environmental Health Officers, Health 
and Safety Officers and local leaders to gather and act on soft intelligence about risk areas, activities, and to ensure 
businesses and workplaces are COVID-Secure. We are urging all residents and businesses to work closely with their 
local district and borough councils. You can reach your local environmental health and licensing team or the HSE here.

• Due to an increasing number of exposures and outbreaks in workplace settings, we are closely monitoring COVID-
Secure compliance with workplaces across the county and we are taking immediate enforcement action where 
necessary.

17

P
age 29

https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/coronavirus-updates/Pages/guidance-for-businesses---coronavirus.aspx


Ongoing Public Health Messaging

18

P
age 30



Ongoing Public Health Actions

• Based on the information we have collated, we are working within specific communities to improve vigilance, raise 
awareness, encourage testing and reiterate prevention measures.  We are asking the public to continue to play their 
part in the fight against coronavirus by adhering to local guidance to reduce the risk locally.

• The Public Health team is continuing to work with our communities and taking prompt proactive action where needed. 
There are specific recommendations in place limiting sporting and other formal or informal events with large numbers 
of spectators.

• We continue to work with schools and education establishments, supporting with advice, guidance and sharing key 
messages.

• We are communicating with our residents in a timely manner to update them on all activity and information and 
tailoring our communications according to the groups affected. This includes leaflet drops in affected areas, signage in 
town centres and entertainment venues and regular social media messages. Examples on slide 18.

• We hold a weekly press conference and providing regular media briefings.

• We are guided by the Northamptonshire Health Protection Board and the COVID-19 Local Oversight and Engagement 
Board. The public part of this meeting is live streamed on YouTube.

• We are monitoring hospital admissions which currently remain low, but we remain vigilant in order to respond quickly  
to any changes.

19

P
age 31



We Are All In This Together

• We all need to continue to protect ourselves and each other by following the guidelines; washing 
hands regularly for 20 seconds, wearing a face covering on public transport and in enclosed spaces 
and keeping 2 metres from others wherever possible.

• To find out more information about local testing sites visit: 
https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/coronavirus-updates/Pages/coronavirus-testing-in-
northamptonshire.aspx.

• Tests can be booked online at nhs.uk/coronavirus or by calling 119. Home testing kits can also be 
ordered subject to availability.

• It is vital that when you leave the house to be tested you must go straight to the testing centre and 
return home immediately to self- isolate until you get your results.

• Advice on how to access a COVID-19 test can be found here: 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-getting-tested.

20

P
age 32

https://www.northamptonshire.gov.uk/coronavirus-updates/Pages/coronavirus-testing-in-northamptonshire.aspx
https://www.nhs.uk/conditions/coronavirus-covid-19/
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-getting-tested


Please Download the NHS Test & Trace App

The Cake Stand 
Café 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TWBJFScQy68&feature=youtu.be

• Easy and simple to use
• Helps keep you informed of the level of risk in your area and if you have been a contact of a case
• Allows you to scan QR codes when you visit premises to remain informed of any risk
• Counts down any self-isolation required
• Safe and secure – data only used for COVID-19 contact tracing purposes
• Must live in England or Wales, be age 16 or over and have a compatible iOS or Android smartphone that 

has Bluetooth

21

P
age 33

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TWBJFScQy68&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=TWBJFScQy68&feature=youtu.be


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes from the previous meeting 19th August 2021
	3 Action log
	6 Northamptonshire COVID19 Weekly Surveillance Report

